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MEETING 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

GRTC Transit System 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the GRTC Transit System and RideFinders will be 
held concurrently at 8:00 a.m. on October 27, 2020.  To protect the safety of meeting attendees, this 
meeting will be conducted through electronic communication means pursuant to and in compliance 
with City of Richmond Ordinance No. 2020-093, adopted April 9, 2020  

AGENDA 

I. Call to Order & Introductions

II. Public Comments

III. Approval of Board Minutes – September 15, 2020 (Pages 3-14)

IV. Governance / Stakeholder

Discussion/Information Items

A. Annual Shareholder Meeting Update – Ben Campbell (Page 15)
B. CVTA Update – Adrienne Torres (Pages 16-30)

V. Operations Report

Discussion/Information Items

A. Operating Performance – Tim Barham (Pages 31-42)
B. Safety Performance – Tony Carter (Pages 43-44)
C. Update on September 2020 Service Changes – Adrienne Torres (Pages 45-46)

Action Items 
A. Exercising First One Year Option for Paratransit Contract – Tim Barham (Pages 47-48)

VI. Financial Report

Discussion/Information Items

A. August Financial Report – Dawn Bailey (Pages 49-53)
B. Monthly Cash Flow Statement and Projections – Dawn Bailey (Pages 54-55)
C. Recent and Upcoming Procurements – Tonya Thompson (Pages 56-57)

Action Items 
A. RideFinders FY20 Financial Audit – Leslie Roberts of Brown, Edwards & Co (Pages 58-94)

VII. Chief Executive Officer’s Report – Julie Timm

VIII. Chairperson Report – Ben Campbell
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IX. Executive Session 
 
X. Other Business 

 
XI. Adjourn 
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MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
GRTC TRANSIT SYSTEM 

 
 

Members Present: Benjamin P. Campbell, Chair 
 Gary Armstrong, Vice Chair 
 Eldridge Coles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 George P. Braxton 
 Daniel K. Smith 
 Ian Millikan 
 
Others: Bonnie Ashley, General Counsel 
 Julie Timm, Chief Executive Officer 
 Sheryl Adams, Chief of Staff 
 Carrie Rose Pace, Director of Communications 
 Adrienne Torres, Director of Planning & Scheduling 
 Tim Barham, Chief of Transportation 
 Anthony Carter, Director of Risk Management 

Emily DelRoss, Planning Manager 
Patricia Robinson, Transit Analyst 
Tonya Thompson, Director of Procurement 
Barry Herring, Chief of Finance 
Kesha Reed, Senior Budget and Financial Analyst 
Rob Taggart, Information Technology Director 

 
 
The meeting of the GRTC Transit System and RideFinders Board of Directors was called to 
order at 8AM, September 15, 2020, by the Chair, Mr. Campbell.  To protect the safety of 
meeting attendees, this meeting was conducted through electronic communication means 
pursuant to and in compliance with City of Richmond Ordinance No. 2020-093, adopted April 9, 
2020.  This meeting was open to participation through electronic communication means by the 
public and closed to in-person participation by the public.  Necessary GRTC Administrative Staff 
and presenters assembled electronically for this meeting, and all GRTC Board of Directors 
participated by videoconference via RingCentral.  A quorum was present. 
 
Public Comments that were submitted before the 5pm deadline on September 14, 2020 were 
read by Carrie Rose Pace as follows: 
 

Fritz A. Mehler - Hello, As a nearby resident, I was surprised when I saw a sign saying 
GRTC was reestablishing a bus stop at the intersection of Grove & Meadow Streets. I was 
under the impression that the previous stop had been abandoned due to the lack of 
ridership. This is a relatively narrow residential street with many parked cars. I oppose the 
new bus stop. 
 
Oonagh Loughran - To the GRTC Board members, I am a resident of Grove Avenue and the 
first time I became aware of this route change was the constant bus service this morning 
Monday September 14th watching the buses speed along the 1400 block of Grove.  While 
the value of a service that connects VCU to UofR is a little unclear to me I am baffled that 
you have chosen to route such a heavily scheduled service along an exclusively residential 
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street. Main Street and Broad Street are not far away and are already well used 
thoroughfares for cars and buses. At a minimum we should have had a period of 
consultation and a leafleting of the neighborhood to let us know of your plans to turn a quiet 
residential street with numerous stop signs into a bus route. The stop signs are a clear 
deterrent to through traffic. As a resident of Grove, I strongly oppose the conversion of a 
quiet street into a busy thoroughfare when it is clear there are much better  
 
Crist Berry - Ms. Timm committed to me, to the FDA BOD, and to Kim Gray back in March to 
hold a meeting for input from Grove Ave residents about the return of bussing to Grove. 
That was delayed by Covid—but in July I reminded her of her commitment to do nothing 
about new routes without hearing from residents. That meeting never happened!  And now 
GRTC has, apparently by fiat, added unnecessary routes. Several years ago, when the 
studies for Pulse were done, the route that went E on Grove and W on Hanover was 
declared unnecessary and closed. A wise move as more often than not, massive busses 
stopping (or passing by) the 2000 block of Grove were empty or held only 1-2 passengers. 
Now—against vocalized opposition—we have massive busses going both ways on a 
congested residential street—AND consuming 6 parking spots in an area where parking is 
very difficult! Once again, these unneeded buses are being thrust upon us by a company 
that is apparently answerable to no one.  ENOUGH. WE PROTEST.   
 
Elizabeth Boyle - Dear GRTC Board Members, I am a resident of the 1900 block of Grove 
Ave. We were shocked last week to come outside to see “Coming Soon” signs on both side 
of Grove at the intersection of Meadow. We received NO communication. I reviewed all the 
online postings, announcements, and updates, including the new maps of Route 77 – these 
stops are not shown. GRTC has told representatives that a virtual meeting was held July 23. 
Not one resident on my block was notified. It is not City Council’s responsibility nor the 
FDA’s (which had no notice as well); it should be GRTC that communicates with residents to 
allow for public comment and input. Without notice of the route and map, why would any 
resident have a reason to even look for a GRTC meeting, especially during a pandemic and 
the unrest?  
 
If you had spoken with us, you would hear this is a residential street, with a church, 
preschool, playground, seniors, and small children. Our homes are close to the street and 
the intersection is already very busy. There are numerous accidents at Meadow and Grove, 
including cars coming onto sidewalks. Just outside the bus stop is three homes with senior 
citizens and a family with two children under two years old. These buses will add a 
considerable amount of noise, fumes/dirt, trash, and traffic. 
 
We cannot lose even one parking spot. This is a zoned parking area because there is 
limited parking and now it is even more compromised. Just this month, Tabernacle Baptist 
Church created four apartments and has up to 4 people per apartment (with only off-street 
space for apartment).  Additionally, the church has almost 2/3 of the south side of Grove 
restricted for church activity parking and a loading zone (seven days a week). If a bus space 
is added, we will lose a significantly portion of the already limited parking. 
 
It is not clear why this location was selected. We have no businesses or employers in the 
surrounding blocks. We do not have apartments or large sections of student housing. There 
was a bus stop at Tabernacle that was eliminated due to very low numbers. It was my 
understanding one goal of the Pulse project was to move buses to Broad and off streets. 
Now they are being added back without any discussion. Does GRTC have supporting data 
justifying these new stops?   

4



 
We request a community meeting – with proper and public notice – to discuss these new 
routes. It is easy to underestimate the significant negative impact adding these stops brings 
to our block and Grove Ave. We deserve to be included and have our considerations and 
concerns given serious attention. Thank you 
 
Betsy Coffield -I understand that there will be a Board of Directors meeting tomorrow and a 
portion of the meeting will be feedback from neighbors concerning the new GRTC bus route. 
I am here to express my opinion.  
 
I live in the Fan on Grove Avenue. I have lived in this neighborhood since 1978 and have 
owned a home on Grove Avenue for almost 20 years. I am past President of the Fan District 
Association, which is a 3,000 household neighborhood, as well as past President of the Fan 
Woman’s Club. I think I have a pretty good feel for my neighborhood and the way it works.  
I am absolutely stupefied at how a bus route could have been added to this community and 
just about no one knew anything about it, including members of the Board of the Fan District 
Association. How could that have happened? How could GRTC not contacted those in the 
community to let them know that buses were going to once again, be driving up and down 
the street, in short intervals of time, every day of the week? Unless of course you didn’t want 
us to know. 
 
Who approved this? Who put their seal of approval on it, without checking in with the 
neighbors affected by it? Who does business that way? Who’s in charge?? The whole thing 
is preposterous! 
 
My understanding of the elimination of the buses two years ago was because there weren’t 
enough riders to support it. Now, with the pandemic and more people working from home, 
how could rider participation gotten better? Every bus that’s gone past my house today has 
NO ONE on it. No one.  
 
I think it would be in your best interest to start the process over and survey the neighbors, 
the neighborhood, their neighborhood association and ask them how they feel about this. Or 
at the very least clue them in as to what GRTC is doing. You’re starting off on a really bad 
foot.  
 

Ms. Rose Pace informed the Board that there were twelve additional public comments 
submitted to GRTC but not directed to the Board.  Ms. Rose Pace asked if the Board would like 
those read, as well.  Mr. Campbell asked if they were all regarding the same comments.  Ms. 
Rose Pace stated there was one that pertained to a different topic and she read that comment. 
 

Bob Plymale - It’s great to hear the UofR, once again, has seven days a week GRTC 
service.  
 
I hope the bus line is used to the point, where it will run later in the evenings and every 15 
minutes. Thank you. 

 
Ms. Timm explained that this route has been a top priority for GRTC since the launch of the 
Transit System Re-design and approval of the Transit Development Plan two years ago. The 
Route along Grove was removed during the planning process for the redesign but was identified 
as one of the two top routes to be put back in place when funding was available.  Over a year 
ago the Planning Department of GRTC, along with the Planning Department and Public Works 
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Department in the City of Richmond reviewed the route change and the permitting of bus stop 
placement.  GRTC held a public meeting in March 2020 along with a survey, and notification 
was provided to the fan district as well as residents near proposed bus stops.    Some 
comments were received against the bus stop pairing at Grove and Strawberry, GRTC removed 
that pairing and focused on a pairing at Grove and Meadow, a larger intersection with better 
accessibility.  At that time, GRTC did commit to having more conversations in March, then 
COVID happened, the coordination was put on hold until GRTC could get meet with the public 
with the understanding that GRTC was planning to delay implementation of this route until 
September.  No other requests or coordination happened until July due to COVID and public 
BLM protests.  If there was an oversight in getting additional notice to the public, GRTC 
acknowledges across the board that it is very hard to get notice to people - especially under 
COVID conditions.  However, GRTC did put out notice on social media, news media, press 
releases, and notices on buses that we were opening the public comment period in July 2020.  
GRTC had a public comment meeting in July on the topic and this also came before the board 
three times - in March, July, and August of 2020 – as part of the public process.  The Route and 
stop placement were approved and permitted by City of Richmond.  GRTC cannot put out bus 
stops without the approval of the City of Richmond.  With all the appropriate approvals and with 
the multiyear public process in place, the project was advanced in September 2020.   GRTC 
recommends that we continue to move forward with this route and review the route ridership, 
review the bus stop boardings and alightings, and review exactly how it is performing over the 
course of the year.  GRTC is also recommending that there be a meeting with the people that 
have voiced complaints about the impact to their neighborhood and to give them a fair hearing 
and to see whether or not there are any adjustments that can be made to how this stop is 
placed and how we are reporting back to them so they do understand this is a fair use of public 
space, public right-of-way. 
 
The Chairman thanked everyone for their comments. 
 
Approval of Minutes:  Mr. Armstrong motioned to approve the August 18, 2020, Board meeting 
minutes, Mr. Braxton seconded, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
CVTA Update – Adrienne Torres 
 
The Central Virginia Transportation Authority (CVTA) had its first meeting on August 27, 2020.  
The meeting was held in-person at the Greater Richmond Convention Center and was also 
available virtually.   The following meeting actions took place:  Acceptance of Bylaws – Passed;  
Guidance Documents – Passed; Election of CVTA Officers, Chair – Frank Thornton and Vice 
Chair – Kevin Carroll; Establishment of Committees:  Finance Committee, the first meeting is 
September 18th at PlanRVA and will be virtual.  The Chair is Mayor Stoney of the City of 
Richmond and the Vice Chair is Canova Peterson of Hanover.  CVTA TAC was also established 
and the first meeting is set for September 21.  
 
Future actions of the CVTA are adopt budget, review and report on transit governance structure, 
establish regional project prioritization process, develop regional transportation plan, make 
staffing decisions, distribute payments to localities and GRTC, and schedule annual audits. 
 
Mr. Smith motioned to grant authorization to request from the CVTA to give GRTC authority to 
spend up to a maximum of $150,000 with Board approval for a consultant to do the detailed 
preparation on the Proposed Plan for the extension of service through CVTA funds; Mr. Braxton 
seconded, and the motion carried unanimously. 
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Fare Policy Considerations – Adrienne Torres 
 

Last fall, GRTC staff presented to the board policy discussion items related to the fare 
program.  This included discussion of an account-based fare system.  With an account-
based system, riders would be able to use reloadable cards (4k smart cards) and take 
advantage of pay-as-go.  The 4k smart cards also has the option of programming fare 
capping.  GRTC is still exploring the cost/benefit of this alternative; however, due to 
COVID-19 and safety pre-cautions, zero fare was adopted by GRTC during the 
pandemic.  Many agencies have adopted this fare change during this time.  At this point 
some agencies have returned to collecting fares, others are extending zero fares during 
the continued state of emergency, and some have started exploring whether to return 
fares at all.  Trends have shown that agencies that implement zero fare see a 20% – 
40% increase in ridership in the first year. 
 
Ms. Torres gave a presentation comparing the costs/benefits of the current pre-COVID 
fare structure, an account-based fare system, and a fully zero-fare system.    
 
As background on who rides GRTC, fifty-four percent of the people served by GRTC 
have an annual household income below $25,000.   One ride/cash and the day pass are 
the primary fare types used by riders with income below $25,000.  The bus is the 
primary fare outlet for riders with income below $25,000.  Most riders with income below 
$25,000 have identified current fares as reasonable and would not support an increase.  
Most riders responded that they have a smartphone. 
 
Ms. Torres presented the three fare system alternatives focusing on comparisons of 
revenue, administrative costs, technology, finance/policy, business/communication, 
operations, and social/economic impacts. 
 
Mr. Braxton thanked Ms. Torres for breaking it down so well.  He stated that it seems 
GRTC should be considering moving to a fare free system.  Mr. Campbell stated that 
the reduced fare weekly and monthly passes are not primarily being used by the people 
that use the system the most.   
 
Operating Performance – Tim Barham 
 

• On-Time Performance is 66.90% for August.   Staff is working on making adjustments on 
poor performing routes.   There was an increase in lost trips for the month. 

• Lost time absenteeism rate for Operators increased to 16%.  This is attributed to high 
number of scheduled vacations coinciding with three positive COVID cases and associated 
quarantine and contact tracing.  This resulted in a significant number of operators not 
available to cover scheduled shifts.  Our Operators are our top priority and we will take the 
proper precautions, follow CDC guidelines, and follow the State – even though it means an 
increased rate of missed trips. 

• One of our Operators, John Thrower, is battling the virus and our thoughts and prayers go 
out to him and his family.   

• One of GRTC’s mechanics passed away, Ernest Loving, III, which is a significant loss to 
GRTC and his family.   His service was this past Friday and our thoughts and prayers go out 
to the Loving family. 
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• Customer complaints are up to 1.41 per 10,000 riders. 

• Local-fixed route for August is down by 11.84%.  The Pulse is down 42.96% for August.  
Commuter Service is 89.75% and total fixed route is down 22.91%.  

• Care Service is down 36.18% for August.  CARE-On-Demand is down 30.39% for August. 

• Total Fixed Route and Specialized Ridership is 640,727.  We continue to see a steady 
include in the service. 

• Route 111 for August 112 weekday and Saturday 110. 

• The on-time performance for the CARE Service for August is 92%. 

• There were 12 complaints and 5 commendations.   
 
There are 273 full-time Operators and eighteen part-time Operators.  Staffing is a little down 
because of retirements, resignations, and three Operators who were promoted to Supervisors.   
GRTC is continuing to recruit, hire, and train; three operators graduated this past Friday, five 
Operators are in training now and will graduate in mid-late October.  GRTC continues to recruit 
for mechanics, we are short three mechanics.  Commercial media shoots start today for 
recruitment. 
 
Mr. Smith motioned to express the Board’s love and concern for the family of Ernest Loving, and 
our prayers and concern for John Thrower, Mr. Coles seconded, and the motion was 
unanimous.  
 
Safety Performance - Tony Carter 
 
For the month of August there was an increase in the number of accidents.  There were 18 
preventable and 25 non-preventable.  There were 26,141 miles between preventable accidents 
for the month of August.  Twenty of those accidents were with non-GRTC vehicles.  There are 
no specific trends.   Staff will be going out on the streets to interact more frequently with 
operators.   
 
GRTC has implemented virtual training. All employees were required to have COVID training 
through the virtual program, and 98% of all GRTC employees have completed that training to 
date.   Currently, staff is working on a program to reach out to the Operators for refresher 
training classes that will also be virtual.  
 
Title VI Program Update 2020 – Emily DelRoss and Patricia Robinson 
 
Federally funded programs or activities must adhere to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
which prevents discrimination based on race, color, or national origin.  GRTC’s Title VI program, 
as required by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), assesses the equity of our system and 
services and identifies how we continue to ensure equity with service and fares.   
 
In 2019, a complaint was filed to the FTA against GRTC alleging a Title VI violation.  In the 
complaint, it was alleged that GRTC changed portions of GRTC’s 2017 Title VI policy to 
manipulate assessments of potential disparate or disproportionate impacts under the 2018 
system redesign.  FTA found this allegation to be unfounded; however, FTA requested that 
GRTC include a more detailed description of how our assessment methodology adheres to FTA 
guidelines. We explain this methodology in the new update. 
 
In summary, eight of the eleven standards that were evaluated during the analysis identified no 
issues for Title VI for the protected populations. Three of the standards did trigger further review 
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as possible areas of concern:  On Time Performance (groups affected: Limited English 
Proficiency, or LEP); Vehicle Headway (groups affected: Minority and LEP); and Stop Spacing 
(groups affected: LEP). 
 
These identified impacts are based on service design standards that prioritize higher frequency 
service in denser urban areas and lower frequency service spread over greater geographic 
areas in rural/low density areas.  These standards have a greater impact on LEP populations in 
the GRTC service area due to the majority of LEP communities residing in rural, lower density 
areas 1) that receive less frequent service based on lower demand/density and 2) for which the 
industry standard for bus stop spacing is greater. GRTC will continue to monitor the design 
standards and needs for public mass transit service in low density areas. 
 
The following were changes to Policy: 
 

• Limited English Proficiency – Spanish is identified as the only LEP population, a change 
from the prior inclusion of Vietnamese and Arabic 

• GRTC has included the methodology for “People Trips” as an analysis method for Disparate 
Impact Policy and Disproportionate Burden Policy.  This methodology allows for a better 
assessment of impacts to transit riders rather than solely on demographics and land use 
along service routes. 

• GRTC will continue to place notification of changes on buses as resources permit, but will 
no longer include it as requirement in the Program 

 
GRTC has completed a feedback survey both in person and online and 93% of respondents 
selected either overall satisfaction or neutrality for the policy section of the Program Update.   
 
Staff is requesting that the Board of Directors approve the Title VI Program Update for 2020.  
Mr. Braxton motioned to grant staff’s request, Mr. Armstrong seconded, and the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Operator Recruitment Media Buy Plan FY21 – Fall 2020 – Carrie Rose Pace 
 

GRTC’s Board of Directors approved the Marketing Operating budget FY21, which 
included a minimum of $200,000 to spend on Operator Recruitment advertising, plus an 
additional $133,000 to spend on other GRTC Marketing efforts.   
 
After internal discussions of company needs in FY21, staff believes it is necessary to 
allocate most of this funding for Operator Recruitment and include new production shots 
showing COVID-19 realities and safety measures.  Separately, the approved budget 
includes up to $19,000 for production of FY21 updates to the campaign materials.  Staff 
is shooting new footage showcasing COVID-19 safety measures (such as masks, 
electrostatic spray cleaning, zero fare social distance, etc.) in September.  Staff will 
incorporate the new production materials into existing campaign materials to maintain a 
consistent presentation.  Additionally, staff will include two new Operator stories into the 
series. Updated messaging will highlight safety, job security, employee benefits, and 
customer service skills.  
 

Currently, GRTC is only advancing the plans for the Fall 2020 media buy run, using part 
of the total FY21 budget for Operator Recruitment.  As in recent media buys, these 
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partners provide a balance of on-air and digital advertising placements.  New this run, 
GRTC is expanding the reach of digital advertising to include more of the 
Commonwealth, potentially competing with other transit markets for talent.  GRTC is 
also scheduling more mobile app advertisements and more streaming. Because of the 
uncertainty of Fall sports, collegiate and professional, GRTC will be able to reallocate 
any future canceled events for other make-good placement in prime (also TBD) or 
news. 
 
GRTC obtained media buy proposals from the following media partners with a not-to-
exceed purchase orders in the following amounts to be spent in Fall 2020:  CBS6 - 
$55,000; NBC12 - $50,000l and FOX - $25,000 
 
Staff is recommending that the Board of Directors authorizes the purchase orders 
specified above in not-to-exceed amounts for each media partner in Fall 2020.  Mr. 
Armstrong motioned to grant staff’s request, Mr. Smith seconded, and the motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Heavy Duty Wrecker – Tonya Thompson 
 
GRTC’s Maintenance Department currently has two heavy-duty wreckers available to tow all the 
fleet vehicles in need of repair.  One of the wreckers is a 1991 Ford and has reached the end of 
its useful life.  Staff issued an RFP to initiate the purchase of a new wrecker.  Two companies 
responded and staff determined that Western Star Trucks of Delmarva submitted the highest 
ranked proposal.  Although Western Star Trucks and Matheny Motor Truck Company were 
close in pricing, Western Star Trucks provided more extensive warranty options.   Staff also took 
into consideration the desire to purchase Articulated buses in the future and this wrecker will be 
able to accommodate those vehicles as well.  This purchase will be funded with federal, state, 
and local grants.  Staff is recommending that the Board of Directors authorizes the CEO to issue 
a purchase order to Western Star Trucking of Delmarva for $533,184 for the purchase of a 
heavy-duty wrecker.  Mr. Smith motioned to grant staff’s request, Mr. Armstrong seconded, and 
the motion carried unanimously. 
 
Financial Performance – Barry Herring 
 

• The overall net budget variance for revenue and expenses combined year-to-date was 
favorable $896,000 as of July 31, 2020. 

• The total net operating revenue for July totaled $5.1M and was $117,000 favorable to 
budget.  The total operating expenses for July totaled $3.5M and was $779,000 favorable to 
budget.  

• The cost centers only had one area that was unfavorable which was the Maintenance 
Department and that was attributed to COVID-19 expenses.  Fleet repairs budget was 
adjusted accordingly due to reducing the fleet as a compliance measure with FTA; 
considering the most recent plans to maintain the fleet at approximately 157 vehicles, more 
maintenance will be needed until the vehicles previously stated for disposal have been 
replaced.  Replacement is expected in July or later in calendar 2021.   

• COVID related expenses / loss revenue since inception is $5,281,601. 

• The GRTC and RideFinders audits are underway and on schedule. 
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• Service Agreements – City of Richmond is signed and we have received our first payment; 
County of Henrico – looks good and is currently being reviewed by the Henrico County 
Manager; Chesterfield County all the details have been worked out and they are reviewing; 
and Petersburg there are a some differences and we are currently working on those. 

 
Recent and Upcoming Procurements – Tonya Thompson 
 
There were no new projects added to the list; however, a few of them are moving through the 
procurement cycle at this time.  Ms. Thompson highlighted three and they are employee parking 
lot, bus cleaners, and the building window washing service.   These have not been posted yet 
but wanted to bring it to your attention in case you know of any sources, businesses that would 
like to work with GRTC, please send any our way. 
 
FY21 Capital Grants – Kesha Reed 
 
GRTC presented the five-year capital concept along with the funding sources and prioritization 
for board consideration during the July 2020 board meeting.  We are now bringing our 
committed projects for FY20 as well as the critical FY21 projects that need funding to move 
forward. 
 
Below is a list of the committed projects that are in an executed FTA grant and they total $11M.   
 

• Fleet - $6.3M for 34 paratransit van replacement and non-revenue vehicles 

• Information Technology - $3.5M for annual software maintenance, hardware, ERP 
Consultant, and Security 

• Planning - $561k for signage and bus stop amenities 

• Facility - $260k for rehabilitation and renovation of Administrative and Maintenance Facility 

• Maintenance - $146k for shop equipment 

• Safety - $109k for safety and security 

• Human Resources - $70k for employee training 
 
 
Below is a list of projects that are in FY21 Capital Plan currently total $13.7M: 
 

• Security - $50k for facility entrance gate replacement 

• PM/ADA/CCC - $9.4M 

• State of Good Repair - $1.8M for IT Annual Software and Hardware, Maintenance – Shop 
Equipment, and Facility – BRT Station Repairs, Facility Needs Assessment, Transit Asset 
Management Consultant & Equipment Garage 

• Business Improvements - $1.2M for Clever Enhancements, Routematch Improvements, and 
S/T Transfer Center Study 

• Service Improvements - $1.3M for Clever Vision 
 
Ms. Reed reviewed and discussed three different scenarios.  
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Scenario 1:  This plan is dependent upon the approval of a state match; state to continue to 
match all requested projects at 68%; total FY21 projects - $13.7M (Federal - $9.2M, State - 
$2.4M, Local - $2.1M). 
 
   Federal   Local 
Current Funds $30,033,212 $650,424 
Scenario 1 $  9,227,407 $325,564 
Funds Remaining $20,805,805 $324,860 
Local requirement excludes PM and does not include contributions from Henrico and 
Chesterfield for FY2021. 
 
Scenario 2:  This plan is moved forward with no support of state match; funding will be 80% 
federal – 20% Local; Total FY21 Projects - $13.7M (Federal - $11M, Local - $2.7M) 
 
   Federal   Local 
Current Funds $30,033,212 $650,424 
Scenario 2 $11,000,399 $871,100 
Funds Remaining $19,032,813 ($220,676) 
Local requirement excludes PM and does not include contributions from Henrico and 
Chesterfield for FY2021. 
 
Scenario 3:  This plan is moved forward with no support of state match; Business Improvements 
& Service Enhancements will be delayed; Funding will be 80% Federal – 20% Local; Total FY21 
Projects - $11.3M (Federal - $9M, Local - $2.3M) 
 
   Federal   Local 
Current Funds $30,033,212 $650,424 
Scenario 3 $  9,030,079 $378,520 
Funds Remaining $21,003,133 $271,904 
Local requirement excludes PM and does not include contributions from Henrico and 
Chesterfield for FY2021. 
 
Outcome – Scenario 3:  Project Delay Impact – Clever improvements; short-term improvements 
at current temporary Transfer Center; and Clever Vision 
 
Staff is requesting that the Board of Directors approve the FY2021 capital projects as presented 
in Scenario 3 immediately.  Staff will return to the Board once a state decision has been made 
on capital grant awards and funding with an alternate funding scenario based on available state 
funding.  After discussions, Mr. Smith motioned to grant staff’s request, Mr. Coles seconded, 
and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
Operational Contingency Fund Policy – Barry Herring 
 
During the August GRTC Board meeting, staff discussed possible updates to the GRTC 
Contingency Fund Policy to better ensure financial stability of the mission, programs, projects, 
and ongoing operations of GRTC.  Contingency funds for operations are necessary to cover 
operational cash flow as well as unforeseen operational expenditures or revenue shortfalls. 
 
The current contingency fund policy is silent on the use of those funds for temporary operational 
cash flow requirements.  As GRTC has no lines of credit, this ongoing practice is critical for the 
monthly sustainability of GRTC operations and cash flow.  
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General Operating Contingency Fund – With an annual budget of over $60M in FY2021, 
GRTC’s average weekly outlay is approximately $1.2M.  The delayed timing of incoming 
revenues including payments and reimbursements from local jurisdictions, state government, 
and federal government creates an upfront need for cash to make payroll and timely vendor 
payments until the governmental reimbursements have been received. 
 
To maintain positive cash flow, $5M of the Operating Contingency Fund shall be designated 
specifically for operational cash flow purposes.  At each monthly Board meeting, GRTC Finance 
shall report on the prior month cash flow, along with a three-month cash flow projection, to 
ensure the $5M is sufficient to meet expenses.  This report will identify the use and 
replenishment of the fund. 
 
Extraordinary Circumstances (COVID-19 Pandemic) – During the COVID-19 Pandemic, 
emergency expenses for PPE, equipment, supplies and materials, bonus pay for front-line 
workers, and reduced revenues was covered by Federal CARES Act funding.  Total CARES 
funding exceeded the identified need for FY2021.  The balance is currently unallocated in order 
to cover unexpected needs in FY2021 or for allocation in FY2022.  Any use of the unallocated 
funding will require GRTC Board approval prior to expenditure. 
 
Should other future extraordinary events result in significant funding to GRTC outside of or 
exceeding the adopted budget, GRTC will account for such funds separately to the extent 
practicable until an approved budget for use of the funds can be reviewed and adopted by the 
Board.  Should the circumstances be of such a critical nature that the funds are required for 
immediate use for the safety, maintenance, and continuation of GRTC service, the CEO shall 
notify the Board Chair and members of the Board as soon as practicable of the need and use 
and shall be authorized to proceed with such use.  The Finance Department is responsible for 
ensuring that each established Contingency Fund is maintained and used only as described in 
this Policy.   
 
Staff is recommending that the Board of Directors approve the updated Contingency Fund 
Policy to address immediate and ongoing needs to use for existing GRTC Contingency Fund for 
monthly operational cash flow.   Mr. Armstrong motioned to grant staff’s request, Mr. Smith 
seconded, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
Chief Executive Officer’s Report – Julie Timm 
 

• Ms. Timm acknowledged the IT staff for the work they have done with the virtual meetings 
and the advanced implementation work before the Pandemic that made this process 
smoother.  GRTC is a model for a lot of other agencies in the region, and she continues to 
be impressed. 

• COVID – GRTC has had three new cases since the last Board meeting.  Three are currently 
out with COVID, two with mild symptoms and one of course with very serious symptoms.  
We are continuing to talk with his family and send our love and support.   

• Flu season is coming and GRTC will be implementing optional onsite flu shots. 

• Ms. Timm mentioned again that it is with great sadness of the passing of Ernie Loving on 
August 31, age 41 way too soon, worked here for 21 years, his father was a 2008 retiree 
with 35 years’ service.  His dad would bring him to GRTC when he was little, and employees 
knew him as “little Ernie.”   We attended his celebration of life last week and Ms. Timm 
learned that he spent his time restoring a car and he had 2 beautiful nephews and a 
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beautiful niece who he adored, and you could see in their reaction how deeply he loved 
them and how deeply that love was returned.  Many people here at GRTC are impacted by 
this loss, and we mourn with the family.   

 
 
Chairperson Report – Ben Campbell 
, 
Executive Session 
 
Mr. Millikan moved that the Board hold a closed meeting pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(29) of 
the Code of Virginia to discuss the status and terms of a collective bargaining agreement, 
because discussion in an open session would adversely affect GRTC’s bargaining position.  
The motion was seconded by Mr. Armstrong, and the motion carried unanimously.  The Board 
went into Executive Session. 
 
At the conclusion of the closed meeting, Mr. Millikan moved to reconvene the open meeting, Mr. 
Coles seconded, and the motion carried unanimously.   Mr. Campbell reconvened the open 
meeting. 
 
Mr. Campbell requested a Roll Call Vote be taken, that this closed meeting was convened 
pursuant to the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and that, according to Sections 2.2-3712 of 
the Code of Virginia, it was conducted in conformity with Virginia law and that nothing was 
discussed except the matter or matters (1) specifically identified in the motion to convene in 
closed session and (2) lawfully permitted to be discussed under the provisions of the Virginia 
Freedom of Information Act cited in that motion.  The Roll Call Vote was unanimous. 
 
Other Business  
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at adjourned 10:58 a.m. 
 
 APPROVED: 
 
 
 
       
 Benjamin P. Campbell, Chair 
 
 
 
  October 27, 2020   
 Date 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

 
 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2020 
Item Title: GRTC Shareholder Meeting and Election of Board Officers 
 

 
 

UPDATE: 
 

The Annual meeting of GRTC Shareholders scheduled for October 21, 2020 was 
postponed by Shareholder request. The new date for the Shareholder meeting is 
scheduled for 10AM on November 6, 2020 and will be held virtually. 
 
Current GRTC appointed Board of Directors terms and the terms of GRTC Board 
Officers will be extended until a Special Meeting of the Board is held to nominate and 
confirm new appointees and to nominate and elect new Board Officers. 
 
GRTC’s Board of Director’s Special Meeting is set for November 17, 2020 at 8 AM to 
run concurrent with GRTC’s Board of Director’s Meeting for November. 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

 
 

Meeting Date:  October 27, 2020 
Item Title: CVTA Update  
 

 
Following the last board meeting, GRTC received a letter from PlanRVA to begin coordination efforts for 
the Regional Public Transportation Plan. GRTC CEO, Julie Timm, prepared a response letter describing 
the proposed plan for the use of up to $200,000 FY2021 CVTA Transit Funds to support the 
development of the FY2022 Regional Public Transportation Plan including associated consulting 
services and the remainder of the FY2021 funds to go into a reserve pending development of a detailed 
plan for their uses. This letter (attached) is consistent with Board direction and ongoing policy 
development for use of Regional funding. 

 
The CVTA Technical Advisory Committee met on October 13th. The agenda included updates on: 

 

• Regional Prioritization Process for 35% Transportation funds 
 

o Discussion on modeling the prioritization process on that similar to the Long Range Transportation 
Plan (LRTP). 
 

• Regional Public Transportation Plan for 15% Transit funds 
 

o GRTC has updated the scope of work to incorporate feedback from the committee and the 
RRPDC Public Transportation Working group. 

o Scope Overview: 
 

▪ Existing GRTC routes and services that provide connections to and between regional 
destinations and will be designated as the foundation of the RVA regional public mass transit 
network; 

▪ Existing GRTC routes and services that provide local mobility connections and feed into the 
regional network; 

▪ Currently identified regional and local transit expansion priorities with preliminary costs and 
phasing; 

▪ Operational cost allocations for the RVA regional public mass transit system and locally 
connected routes and services;  

▪ Required capital funds for vehicle purchases, infrastructure design and construction, and 
planning studies to support existing and planned regional routes; and  

▪ Regional transit system reserve fund needs to maintain established regional operations 
through economic downturns and other states of emergency.   

 
o GRTC will be moving forward with the procurement process to select a consultant from the DRPT 

bench contract. 
 

▪ Goal is to have the consultant under contract by the end of October, alternative scenarios 
complete by end of December, and plan complete by end of March. 
 

• Transit Service Governance Report  
 

o Scope was adjusted following feedback from the last CVTA TAC meeting. 
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o Timeline was adjusted from December 1st to March 31st. 

 
o Scope Overview: 

 

▪ Strategic Assessment of GRTC’s Governance Structure – Nov. 30th 

 

• Strategic Assessment of GRTC’s Peer Transit Agencies 

• Strategic Assessment of Benchmarking 

 

▪ Evaluation of Transportation District vs CVTA Powers and Authority in relation to transit 

funding – Dec. 30th  

 

▪ Options for Potential Transit Governance Strategies – Dec. 30th  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

The CVTA Finance Committee met on October 14th. The agenda included review of the Draft FY2021 
Operating Budget. Included in the budget discussion was use of the CVTA Transit funds for consulting 
services for the development of the FY2022 Regional Public Transportation Plan and for the Transit 
Governance Report. 
 
Future Meeting dates: 
 

• CVTA TAC – October 13th  

• CVTA Finance – October 14th  

• CVTA – October 30th  
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

 
 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2020 
Item Title: Operating Performance 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

Attached are the monthly operating statistics through September 30, 2020. 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS: 
 
Chief of Transit Operations, Tim Barham, will review the operating statistics, KPIs, staffing, and 
COVID-related updates for Fixed Route and Paratransit Services for the month of September. 
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1.0  TRANSPORTATION 
1.1 Fixed Route Performance – Lost Time Rate – Bus Operators 

 
1.2.1 Fixed Route Performance – Scheduled Trips Operated 

 

Comments:   

1.2.2 Fixed Route Performance – On-Time Performance 

 

Comments:  KPI Goal is 80% or greater.   

1.3.1 Customer Service Center – Complaints – Fixed Route  
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2.0  HUMAN RESOURCES 
2.1 Employment Comparisons 

 
3.0  RISK MANAGEMENT 

3.1.1 Fixed Route – Traffic Accident Data 

 

 
3.1.2 Fixed Route – Passenger Accident Data 
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3.2.1 Specialized Transportation – Traffic Accident Data 

 

 
3.2.2 Specialized Transportation – Passenger Accident Data 

 

 
3.3.1 Fixed Route – Traffic Accidents per 100,000 Miles 
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3.3.2 Fixed Route – Passenger Accidents per 100,000 Miles 

 

 
4.0  INFORMATION SYSTEMS 

4.1 Projects 
Scope | 
Were Scope 
Changes 
More Than 
Expected?

Quality |
 Are Quality 
Problems 
Being 
Fixed?

Project Schedule Budget Start Date Completion 
Date

 Baseline 
Budget 

 Actual 
Budget 

Within Anticipated 
Limits Of Staff-
Hours Spent?

Project Sponsor Project Lead # Change 
Requests

# Defects 
Fixed Per 

User 
Acceptance 

Test
CCAD Upgrade Planning Phase $0 12/01/19 01/28/20  $              - -$          Yes IT Dexter Hurt 0 2

Spec Trans 
Validators Execution Phase $978,795 08/01/18  $    978,795  $             - Yes Transportation Dexter Hurt 2 0

Automate Swipe 
Card Invoicing 
Process

Pending $0    $              - -$           IT Hector Serrano 0 0

Universal Card Pending TBD    $             -   $             -  TBD TBD 0 0

AMBLE - Online 
Reservation Execution Phase $91,875 01/07/19   $             -  -$          Yes Specialized 

Transportation Jean Lombos 0 0

GRTC Zone 
Creation Planning Phase $6,300 TBD   $             -  -$          Yes Specialized 

Transportation Jean Lombos 0 0

Saftey 
Management 
System (SMS) 

Planning Phase TBD TBD  $               - $        - Yes Safety Jean Lombos 0 0

GRTC SCCM 
Implementation Planning Phase $0 09/01/19  $              - -$          Yes IT Ernesto Leon 0 0

Money Room App 
Install Execution Phase $15,111 11/26/19   $             -  -$          Yes Finance Money room Ernesto Leon 0 0

Greenshades Time 
Sheets Execution Phase $7,983 11/26/19   $             -  -$          Yes GRTC Ernesto Leon 0 0

GRTC Computer 
Refresh - Phase 1 Execution Phase 9/18/2019  $             -   $             - Yes GRTC Melissa 

Richards 0 0

Ring Central 
Phone System 
Project

Closure Phase 12/18/19   $             -  -$          Yes GRTC Dexter Hurt 0 0

Project Status Time  Cost 
Within Anticipated Limits Of Staff-Hours 

Spent?

Comments:    Clever CAD upgrade complete and clients upgraded to version 9.  Working with Clever Team on ongoing upgrade of all other Clever Systems. 

Comments:    Validators installed in all vehicles, in the process of printing and shipping customer ID Cards, testing webportal for adding value to customer cards, Go Live delayed due to vendor 
related issues.  Project dependant on the new fare structure and GENFARE work for VCU and FiXED ROUTE.   New Fare structure installed and working.  Next step to launch the new Moble App.

Comments:  No projected go live date at this time.   Specifications to be gathered and documented.  Option available within GFI backend of SpecTrans Validator Project.  

Comments:      

Comments:  App is very spotty.  Currently reviewing issues reported by users.   After performing several tests and working with RouteMatch, we've concluded that user error.  Plan on revisiting 
users for retrain.  TBD.   Currently, app is constantly monitored.  Sent RM a few concerns regarding Window Times, Funding Sources.  Since the last reporting, the Window Times 
have been established to be correct.  As for the Funding Source, it has been linked to the Care Fare Map project which is currently ongoing (7/27/20).  Trip option is being utilized by our 
customers.  No known reports about the reservation tool (8/27/2020).

Comments:   Awaiting on assigned resource and projected timeline.   As of 8/28, we are still in planning phase.  A new route will be implemented by next March 2020.  Will reschedule 
implementation and installation until further notice.   As of 9/27, project is still on hold due to the upcoming additional routes.  TBD.  As of 7/27/20, we have submitted guidelines beginning this 
month and awaiting for the final roughdraft from RM.  No updates since then.   As of 8/27/2020, waiting on David Chin and Jane for training and implementation.  Expected response from RM is 
next week

Comments:  System is live.  Project Complete

Comments:   Tasked to research software that will assist the company with its need of data gathering that ranges from accidental to trending.  Will gather all information from vendors and submit 
findings to COS and Safety Director.   As of 7/27/20, project has been implemented. Parties involved have since placed it as functional.  Project requirements have been met.  This project has 
been implemented and is currently in use - 8/27/2020.

Comments:  Working on a proof of concept and testing.

Comments:  Implemention of project and testing.

Comments:  Implemention and testing of project.

Comments:  New installs are still in progress.  As of 7/31/20 about 85% of this PC Refresh project is complete.  Completed installs are live, and on the network/can be remoted into.  OptLounge 
and rest of CS Dept is left to do mostly.
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5.0  CONSTRUCTION AND FACILITIES MAINTENANCE  

5.1 Projects 
Scope | 
Were 
Scope 
Changes 
More 
Than 
Expected
?

Project Schedule Budget Start 
Date

Completio
n Date

 
Baseline 
Budget 

 Actual 
Budget 

Within 
Anticipated 

Limits Of Staff-
Hours Spent?

Project 
Sponsor Project Lead # Change 

Requests

101 S. Davis Ave. 
Environmental 
Recovery

Active/On-
Schedule $49,915 02/01/16 11/01/17 $49,915 77,815$   Yes Engr/Constr Joey Agee 27,900

Facility Management Active/Continous $270,598 07/01/20 06/30/21 207,520 
Expended $142,734 Yes Facilities  Joey Agee 0

Pulse Active/Continous $338,918 07/01/20 06/30/21  TBD* TBD* Yes Facilities Joey Agee 0

Pulse Park-n-Ride Active/Continous TBD Continous Continous  TBD* TBD* Yes Engr/Constr Joey Agee 0

Employee Parking Lot 
Repairs 

Active/On-
Schedule $175,000 TBD 12/30/20 $0.00 TBD* Yes Facilities Joey Agee 0

Southside Plaza TC Active/Continous TBD TBD TBD  TBD* TBD*  Joey Agee 0

GRTC Church Annex Active/Continous TBD TBD TBD  TBD* TBD* Joey Agee 0

Pulse Platform 
Modification Active TBD TBD TBD  TBD* TBD* Joey Agee 0

Transit Plaza 
Improvements  $         - -$           0

Comments:  Received proposals on geotechnical servies and property assessment, waiting to schedule this work to be completed.    

Comments:  Staff reviewing possible modifications to brick wing walls at Pulse Stations.  Staff to gain partner approvals before moving forward to COR processes.  
We have Baker working on this project currently.

Comments:   Conceptual - started power washing the TTP monthly to stay on top of cleaning for our  riders. 

Comments:   General facility maintenance and response to facility help desk requests on-going:   completed our quarterly HVAC inspections; received final drawings 
and scope for employee parking lot repairs; working with planning on a shelter guidelines and a bus stop cleaning plan; completed painting in the front lobby and HR; 
working on a safety plan for the shop floors; continue working on the SMS plan with safety; back flow repairs completed; sneeze shields installed in Customer Service. 

Comments:   Daily trash and cleaning maintenance 8-5.  Powerwashing occurs every Wednesday night starting at 1:30am (weather permitting). Monthly power 
washing being completed every month at all 26 pulse staions; repaired brick knee-wall at East River EB and Rockettes Landing; replaced broken glass at Science 
Museum WB and Government Center WB  work continues.           

Comments:   Is off.  

Comments:  Received the final drawings and completed our IFB, waiting on the state match to proceed with a prebid meeting.         

Comments:   Staff will explore opportunity for transit center contact at shopping center.   Status - conceptional.      

 Cost 
Within Anticipated Limits Of Staff-

Hours Spent?Project Status Time

Comments:   GRTC has finally received a DEQ Claim Decision Summary Notification of our last recovery request.  We requested $180,000 in reimbursement 
expenditures and will receive a check for $144,073.19 (80% of requested reimbursement is typical for DEQ).  This project can now be closed as completed.   

 
6.0  PLANNING AND SCHEDULING 

6.1 Supplier Diversity 
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7.0  MARKETING 
7.1 Media Buys Update 

• Fall 2020 Operator recruitment advertising media buys approved by the Board in September. Production of updated and new ads 
occurred in September. Ads run in October. 

• Media Transit trade value ($9000) with ULTRA and Boomtown Radio – ads support Operator recruitment efforts. 
7.2 Marketing Projects 

• Operator Recruitment  
• Support for Booking – map review, audio scripts, public notification, etc. 

7.3 GRTC Pulse Branding and Public Outreach 
• Twitter engagement continued on the Pulse account. The account now has 1,488 followers, about flat from last month’s 1,491 

followers.  
• Facebook engagement continued on the Pulse page. This account now has 919 likes, about flat from last month’s 922 likes. 
• GRTC offered a virtual ride-along for guests from Alexandria VA in September. This format allowed for a live experience and 

interactive Q&A, without having guests physically aboard. We plan to use this until the pandemic ends. 
7.5 Social Media (stats as of September 29, 2020) 

• Instagram: 1,211 followers. (Up slightly from 1,209 followers last month) 
• Twitter at 2,130 followers. (Flat from 2,131 followers last month) 

HIGHLIGHTS: We were up across most metrics (impressions, profile visits, and mentions) because of mentions related to the Voter 
Shuttle service. Most popular tweet was the Voter Shuttle announcement. (Reminder: we only have a CSR in Radio to tweet service 
alerts currently during AM peak, so tweet activity is down, as expected). 
o Number of Tweets: 50 (same as previous period) 
o Number of Profile Visits: 651 (up 99% from previous period) 
o Number of Mentions: 103 (up 129% from previous period). 
o Number of Tweet Impressions: 50,100 (up 60% from previous period). 

• Facebook 3,388 “Likes”. (Down slightly from 3,390 likes last month) Detailed stats below. 
HIGHLIGHTS: Like Twitter, we were up on page views, post reach and post engagement, where traffic was driven primarily by Voter 
Shuttle information, the Director of Maintenance announcement, and the announcement of the death of our Operator.   
o Post Reach (last 28 days): 3,108 (up 114% from previous period) 
o Post Engagement (last 28 days): 1,808 (up 269% from previous period) 
o Page Views (last 28 days): 783 (up 124% from previous period) 
o This month photo posts were again the most popular for reach (reaching an average of 785 people), but video posts were most 

popular for engagement (averaging 76 clicks per post).  
o Responsiveness to customers (i.e. customer queries that we responded to): 80%. Response time: about 10 hours to respond to a 

customer. (NOTE: some messages received were insulting or used demeaning language and did not receive a response). 
8.0  RIDEFINDERS 

8.1 Vanpool Program 
• Compiled pre-COVID 19 and current operating vanpool numbers report for Chris Arabia (DRPT) 
• Referred 3 customers for vanpool placement to Account Executives 
• Corresponded with vanpool vendors for various inquiries   
• Phone Conference with DRPT regarding discontinuance of marketing and advertising of vanpool promotion until further notice due to 

CDC recommendations/guidelines and efforts for public health and safety due to COVID 19 impacts 
•  Forwarded notice to ETC regarding the new process for exchanging/returning vanpool vouchers for vanpools that have 

folded/terminated due to COVD 19 impacts  
8.2 Marketing, Education & Awareness Communications 

• Ongoing website, mobile app, LinkedIn and social media update.  
• Worked with Left Plus Right Minds on reviewing website for accessibility- to make the website more useable for people who are blind 

or have other disabilities. 
• Updated LinkedIn with two articles focused on helping employers with free services and Bicyclist and Pedestrian Awareness Month. 

o Posted Executive Director’s Corner video to encourage employers to contact RideFinders.  
• Began compiling RideFinders FY20 Annual Report. 

8.3 Celebrate Earth Day, Every Day Clean Air Campaign   

• Continued theme for Clean Air season – Celebrate Earth Day, Every Day with focus on and interconnecting air quality, 
environmentally friendly initiatives, and biking.  

• Continued to promote green activities like recycling to celebrate Earth Day, every day. 
8.4 Bicyclist and Pedestrian Awareness Month 

• Partnered with Drive Smart Virginia to promote Bicyclist and Pedestrian Awareness Month. 
• Encouraged cyclists and pedestrians to see and be seen when participating in these activities by wearing brightly colored clothing 

and using bike lights and reflectors. 
• Cross promoted Wheel and Walk Wednesday to promote safety and awareness. 
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Bike to Work Week (September 21 – 27) & Bike There (to Work) Day (September 22) 
• Promoted Bike to Work Week & Bike There (or to Work) Day and cross promoted Wheel and Walk Wednesday with Bike to Work 

Week & Bike There (or to Work) Day. 
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CURRENT PRIOR *INCREASE
MONTH YEAR DECREASE % 

Fixed Route
Local-Fixed Route 549,133 572,095 (22,962) -4.01%
Local-Pulse 122,395 211,667 (89,272) -42.18%
Subtotal Fixed Route 671,528 783,762 (112,234) -14.32%
Richmond Express 1,711 5,138 (3,427) -66.70%
Henrico Express 2,525 15,679 (13,154) -83.89%
Chesterfield Express 865 3,196 (2,331) -72.93%
Petersburg Express 985 1,858 (873) -47.00%
Kings Dominion Express 0 4,233 (4,233) -100.00%
Subtotal Express 6,086 30,104 (24,018) -79.78%
Total Fixed Route 677,614 813,867 (136,252) -16.74%

Specialized Transportation
CARE/CARE Plus 17,213 24,256 (7,043) -29.04%
CARE On-Demand 1,932 2,491 (559) -22.44%
Subtotal Specialized 19,145 26,747 (7,602) -28.42%

 TOTAL FIXED ROUTE / SPECIALIZED 696,759 840,614 (143,854) -17.11%

YTD INCREASE
DECREASE % 

Fixed Route
Local- Fixed Route 1,564,182 1,690,846 (126,664) -7.49%
Local- Pulse 345,882 589,983 (244,101) -41.37%
Subtotal Fixed Route 1,910,064 2,280,829 (370,765) -16.26%
Richmond Express 3,455 15,820 (12,365) -78.16%
Henrico Express 5,187 48,148 (42,961) -89.23%
Chesterfield Express 1,963 9,589 (7,626) -79.53%
Petersburg Express 2,880 5,516 (2,636) -47.79%
Kings Dominion Express 0 23,808 (23,808) -100.00%
Subtotal Express 13,485 102,881 (89,396) -86.89%
Total Fixed Route 1,923,549 2,383,710 (460,161) -19.30%

Specialized Transportation
CARE/CARE Plus 49,613 72,452 (22,839) -31.52%
CARE On-Demand 5,606 7560 (1,954) -25.85%
C-VAN 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Subtotal Specialized 55,219 80,012 (24,793) -30.99%

FIXED ROUTE / SPECIALIZED TOTAL 1,978,768 2,463,722 (484,954) -19.68%
Van Pool

Van Pool (YTD totals through August) 27,701 66,084 (38,383) -58.08%

TOTAL TRIPS 2,006,469 2,529,806 (523,337) -20.69%

INFORMATIONAL- Data reported using GFI
No GFI Data available due to Free Fares Implementation during COVID-19 Pandemic
Kings Dominion closed for the remainder of calendar year 2020 

September 2020 passenger trips not reflected, no 
vendor reported data by time of report.

GRTC TRANSIT SYSTEM
FITS REPORT September 2020

Revised 10/20/2020
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

 
 

Meeting Date:  October 27, 2020 
Item Title:  Safety Performance 
 

 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

Tony Carter, Director of Risk Management, will provide an update on safety statistics for the month 
of August.  
 

 
CURRENT STATUS: 

 
 September August 
Bus Contact with Fixed Object 9 2 
Damage to Outside Mirror of the Bus 6 8 
Passenger Accidents 12 10 
Collisions with Non-GRTC Vehicles 11 20 
Collisions Between GRTC Vehicles 1 3 
 
Preventable Accidents: 14 18 
Non-Preventable Accidents:  22 25 
 
Miles Between Total Accidents:    12,065                     10,943 
 
Miles between Preventable Accidents:   33,610   26,141 
 
Internal Accident:   1 4 
External Accidents:   38   40 
 

Definitions: 
 

Bus Contact with Fixed Object:  A motor vehicle collision between our bus and a stationary 
object such as a pole, fire hydrant, etc. 
 
Passenger Accidents: Any accident involving a passenger’s slip, trip or fall while boarding, 
alighting or on board the bus. 
 
Preventable Accidents:  A motor vehicle collision or passenger trip, slip or fall, in which the 
Operator did not do everything reasonable to avoid a collision, committed an error or failed to 
react to the errors of others.  
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Non-Preventable Accident:  A motor vehicle collision in which the Operator committed no 
driving error and reacted reasonably to the error of others.  
 

Miles Between Total Accidents:  Total miles driven divided by number of accidents 
 
Miles between Preventable accidents: Total miles driven divided by number of Preventable 
Accidents 
 
Internal Accident:  Accident that took place on GRTC Bus Yard 
 
External Accidents: Accidents that did not take place on GRTC Property 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

 
Meeting Date:  October 27, 2020 
Item Title:  September Service Change 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
The September service changes went into effect on Sept 13, 2020. The below table provides a summary 
of the changes. 

 

Route Service Change 

1A/1B/1C • Saturday - Increased frequency on the 1B to 40 mins from 60  

• Sunday - Split routes at SSP to create Route 1 that runs on Chamberlayne to SSP 

• Sunday - Increased frequency on 1C on to 40 mins from 60 

2B • Alignment change to incorporate Ladies Mile 

50 • Route extension to Marshall and 2nd 

75 • Removed – absorbed into 76, 77, 79 

76 • Alignment changed to service St. Mary’s 

77 • Alignment changed to service U of R and the Fan 

78 • Increase in frequency to 40 mins from 60 

79 • Alignment changed to service St. Mary’s 

 
In addition to the above changes, GRTC continued the following changes implemented during COVID-19 
in an effort to increase operator resources. 
 

• 4A/4B – continue 30-minute service all day 
• Route 39 – temporarily discontinued 
• Express Routes – continue to monitor capacity on the reduced service levels using spectran 

vehicles 

 

Update: 
 
GRTC continues to monitor the performance of the routes and stops. Per the request of the Fan District 
Association, GRTC held a virtual meeting on October 14th at 5:00pm to discuss the routing changes and 
performance of the Route 77. The meeting was well attended with a themed request to remove the route 
between Robinson Street and Lombardy on Grove avenue. As with the rest of the routes GRTC will 
continue to monitor the stops and use within this corridor. The following image provides an update on all 
the route changes from September and performance. GRTC has also developed a new performance tool 
that will review all routes on a monthly and quarterly basis. This will be presented at the November board 
meeting. 
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September Route Changes Performance

Average Ridership by Day

Weekday  Route 50 Route 76 Route 77 Route 79 Total

July 1 - Sept 11 186 54 131 146 517

Sept 11 - Oct 12 284 110 95 162 651

Average Ridership by Day

Saturday  Route 50 Route 76 Route 77 Total

July 1 - Sept 11 126 29 55 210

Sept 11 - Oct 12 272 44 39 355

Average Ridership by Day

Sunday  Route 50 Route 76 Route 77 Total

July 1 - Sept 11 107 26 55 188

Sept 11 - Oct 12 165 31 41 237

Avg Weekday April - Sept Avg Weekday Sept - Oct
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Action Item 

 
Meeting Date:  October 27, 2020 
Item Title:  Specialized Transportation Service 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 

In 2017, GRTC solicited for bids to provide specialized transit services for eligible paratransit 
riders within the GRTC service area.  First Transit provided the most highly rated bis with an 
approved agreement for a three-year base term and four one-year optional extensions.   
 
On September 19, 2017 the GRTC Board of Directors approved staff’s recommendation to 
execute a three-year agreement with First Transit, Inc. for the provision of specialized 
transportation service.  Under this approval, staff is required to return to the GRTC board for 
approval to exercise any of the option years in the agreement. 

 
 

HIGHLIGHTS: 
 
During the first three years of the base contract term, First Transit has improved on the level 
of service previously provided to GRTC’s paratransit riders.  Further, First Transit has been 
responsive to staff and has shown steady improvement with operational performance 
metrics. However, staff has not been entirely satisfied with First Transit’s overall staffing 
levels or accuracy of reporting and is continuing to work with First Transit on developing 
better metrics, more accurate and transparent reporting, and added overflow capacity to 
balance staffing issues. 

 
First Transit will only provide labor under the contract to include scheduling, hiring, 
communications, and reporting under the contract. This includes a trainer, scheduler, 
validator, management, reservationists, dispatchers, and operators. GRTC will continue to 
perform maintenance of all vehicles and fulfill all other capital requirements for paratransit 
service.  GRTC will also maintain physical space for First Transit operations in support of this 
contract out of GRTC’s facilities. 
 
Payment will be made on a price per revenue hour basis. Each contract year including the 
option years has a revenue cap. The Contractor will not receive payment for revenue hours 
exceeding each year’s cap. The price for Option Year 1 is as follows: 

 
 Price per 

Revenue Hr. 
 

Projected Total 
Option Year 1 $36.63 $5,054,940 

 
Projected totals are based on estimated revenue hours of 138,000 in Option Year 1.  GRTC’s 
actual costs for FY20 paratransit services was $4,728,232.   The operating budget for 
paratransit services for FY21 was increased to $6,522,195 in consideration of CARES Act 
funding to cover any increased service needs during the COVID State of Emergency and 
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associated Zero Fare operations.  Should the total revenue hours in FY21 exceed the originally 
estimated 138,000 under the contract, the total contract value for the year could increase from 
$5,054,940 to a total not to exceed $6,522,195. These CARES Act funds are specifically and 
only authorized for use if specialized transit services exceed 138,000 revenue hours in FY21. 
 
This program is entirely supported with budgeted federal funds and local operational funds. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

That the Board of Directors authorizes the CEO to execute Option Year 1 with First Transit, 
Inc. for the provision of specialized transportation service. 
 
 
 
         
Eldridge F. Coles, Secretary Date 
GRTC Board of Directors 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

 
 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2020 
Item Title: August 2020 Financial Report 

 

 
BACKGROUND: 

 
Attached is the Financial Report as of August 31, 2020.  Dawn Bailey, Controller, will 
highlight the key points. 
 
 

KEY POINTS: 
 

• YTD Net Budget Variance is favorable by $845K, primarily due to the reduced 
ridership on SpecTran. 

• Operating Contributions for August are $209K unfavorable to budget, due to the 
timing of Federal funding. 

• The Maintenance Cost Center is $383K unfavorable to budget for August and 
$424K YTD. COVID-19 expenses are accounted for in this cost center, which is 
attributable to the unfavorable variance. 

• COVID-19 related expenses/loss revenue (since inception) $6,795,230 
 
 

AGING REPORT:  
 

  TOTAL C URRENT 31-60DAYS 61-90DAYS OVER 91DAYS 

Accts Payable $3,468,824 $2,482882 $942,424 $6,226 $37,292 

Accts Receivable $11,552,570 $9,764,425 $340,854 $363,857 $1,083,434 
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GRTC TRANSIT SYSTEM 

BUDGET VARIANCE YTD 

FOR THE TWO MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2020 

(In 000's) 

 

 FY2021 

 July August 

 Favorable/ Favorable/ 

  (Unfavorable)  (Unfavorable) 

 REVENUES:  

Operating Revenue $ 107 $ 29 

Other Income $ (8)   $ (10) 

Operationg Contributions $ 18 $ (209) 

Total Revenues $ 117 $ (190) 

 EXPENSES: 
  

Maintenance $ (41) $ (383) 

Transportation $ 181 $ 2 

Planning, Scheduling & Marketing $ 83 $ 55 

Insurance & Safety $ 82 $ 53 

General & Administrative $ 173 $ 97 

Purchase of Service - Spectran & Van Pools $ 235 $ 305 

Payroll Taxes $ 66 $ 10 

Total Expenses $ 779 $ 139 

NET BUDGET VARIANCE $ 896 $ (51) 
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GRTC Transit System 
 

STATEMENT OF INCOME 

BUDGET VS. ACTUAL 

For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Operating Revenue: 

Customer Revenue - Fixed Route 

       
15,731 

  
15,731 

 
F 

 
0 

Pass Program Revenue 65,751 65,751  0 F 131,501 184,627  53,126 F 789,006 

Charter Revenue  221  221 F  443  443 F 0 

Advertising Revenue 35,417 65,555  30,138 F 70,833 141,004  70,171 F 425,000 

Other Operating Revenue 1,563 50  (1,513) U 3,125 50  (3,075) U 18,750 

Total Operating Revenue 102,731 131,577 
 

28,846 F 205,459 341,855 
 

136,396 F 1,232,756 

Other Income: 

Ridefinders 

 

36,900 

 

36,529 

  

(371) 

 

U 

 

73,800 

 

73,058 

  

(742) 

 

U 

 

480,219 

Interest Income 15,396 7,009  (8,387) U 30,792 16,511  (14,281) U 184,750 

Non-Transportation Income 2,204 1,000  (1,204) U 4,408 1,030  (3,378) U 26,450 

Total Other Income 54,500 44,538 
 

(9,962) U 109,000 90,599 
 

(18,401) U 691,419 

Operating Contributions: 

CARES Act VA2020-023 

 

2,248,905 

 

2,252,160 

  

3,255 

 

F 

 

4,497,810 

 

4,192,563 

  

(305,247) 

 

U 

 

26,986,854 

Oper contrib - Federal 675,131 439,866  (235,265) U 1,350,262 1,380,864  30,602 F 8,101,574 

Oper contrib - State 802,200 845,590  43,390 F 1,604,400 1,771,383  166,983 F 9,626,400 

Oper contrib - Richmond 663,140 663,140  0 F 1,326,281 1,326,281  0 F 7,957,684 

Oper contrib - Henrico 353,867 347,183  (6,684) U 707,735 669,081  (38,654) U 4,246,400 

Oper contrib - Petersburg 16,667 16,667  0 F 33,333 33,333  0 F 200,000 

Oper contrib - Chesterfield 102,636 89,236  (13,400) U 205,273 161,282  (43,991) U 1,231,636 

Total Operating Contributions: 4,862,546 4,653,842 
 

(208,704) U 9,725,094 9,534,787 
 

(190,307) U 58,350,548 

  
 

    
 

    

Net Operating Revenue 5,019,777 4,829,957  (189,820) U 10,039,553 9,967,241  (72,312) U 60,274,724 

 
Operating Expenses: 

Equipment & Facility Maintenance 

 
 

898,265 

 
 

1,281,650 

  
 

383,385 

 
 

U 

 
 

1,780,359 

 
 

2,204,431 

  
 

424,072 

 
 

U 

 
 

11,981,217 

Transportation 1,479,133 1,476,997  (2,136) F 2,639,878 2,456,599  (183,279) F 20,072,345 

Planning, Scheduling & Marketing 155,483 100,086  (55,397) F 308,464 170,206  (138,258) F 2,014,244 

Insurance and Safety 285,410 231,931  (53,479) F 573,320 437,369  (135,951) F 3,471,883 

General and Administrative 1,041,841 945,214  (96,627) F 2,055,075 1,785,893  (269,182) F 13,264,570 

Purchase of Service - Spectran & Van Pool 621,849 316,661  (305,188) F 1,243,699 703,866  (539,833) F 7,462,196 

Operating Taxes and Licenses 148,156 138,226  (9,930) F 300,866 225,087  (75,779) F 2,008,268 

Total Operating Expenses 4,630,137 4,490,765 
 

(139,372) F 8,901,661 7,983,451 
 

(918,210) F 60,274,724 

Change in Net Postion 389,640 339,192 
 

(50,448) 
 

1,137,892 1,983,790 
 

845,898 
 

0 

 
Operating Ratio 

 
13.6% 

 
14.0% 

  
0.4% 

  
14.2% 

 
16.2% 

  
2.1% 

  

 
Farebox Recovery Ratio 

 
1.6% 

 
1.6% 

  
-0.1% 

  
1.7% 

 
2.8% 

  
1.0% 
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GRTC Transit System 
 

OPERATING EXPENSES 10/22/20 

BUDGET VS. ACTUAL 06:22 PM 

For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2020 BED YTD 

1 

 

  Labor   Other Costs   Total  

       Budget                Actual  (Over) Under           Budget                 Actual  (Over) Under            Budget                Actual  

 
 

EQUIPMENT & FACILITY MAINTENANCE 
Mechanic Wages $251,511 $280,209 

  
($28,698) 

      
$251,511 

  
$280,209 

Bus Cleaners & Grounds Services 171,767 140,706  31,061      171,767  140,706 

Supervisorty & Other Personnel 193,526 64,745  128,781      193,526  64,745 

Maintenance Pension Expense 37,804 34,428  3,376      37,804  34,428 

Fleet Repairs & Parts Shipment   375,220  423,440  (48,220) 375,220  423,440 

Vehicle Tires   91,319  87,658  3,661 91,319  87,658 

Fuel, Oil & Lubricants   104,069  121,724  (17,655) 104,069  121,724 

CNG Fueling Cost   285,051  201,681  83,370 285,051  201,681 

Shop Supplies, Materials and Tools   105,249  48,268  56,981 105,249  48,268 

Facility Maintenance   123,721  106,761  16,960 123,721  106,761 

Mechanic Uniforms & Tools   10,230  4,416  5,814 10,230  4,416 

Transit Technology Maintenance   13,133  4,326  8,807 13,133  4,326 

Maintenance Travel, Traning and Other Ex   1,092  2,119  (1,027) 1,092  2,119 

CARES Act VA2020-023 Expense                16,667    683,950    (667,283)   16,667    683,950 

Equipment & Facility Maintenance   654,608  520,088    134,520   1,125,751    1,684,343    (558,592)   1,780,359    2,204,431 
 

TRANSPORTATION 
Operator Wages 2,058,996 1,911,490 

  

 
147,506 

      

 
2,058,996 

  

 
1,911,490 

Supervisors and Other Personnel 254,166 243,687  10,479      254,166  243,687 

Transportation Pension Expense 238,733 223,213  15,520      238,733  223,213 

SpecTran Expenses   27,966  28,898  (932) 27,966  28,898 

RPS Pass Program   1,743  2,043  (300) 1,743  2,043 
Operator Uniform Allowance   21,333  12,300  9,033 21,333  12,300 

Transporation Travel, Training & Other Exp                      36,941    34,968    1,973   36,941    34,968 

Transportation   2,551,895  2,378,390    173,505   87,983    78,209    9,774   2,639,878    2,456,599 
 

PLANNING, SCHEDULING & MARKETING 
Scheduling Wages 116,427 91,445 

  

 
24,982 

      

 
116,427 

  

 
91,445 

Other Scheduling Expenses   9,166  1,092  8,074 9,166  1,092 

Marketing Wages 43,138 34,906  8,232      43,138  34,906 

Advertising Commissions   49,734  35,580  14,154 49,734  35,580 

Advertising & Promotion   82,738  7,097  75,641 82,738  7,097 

Survey & Data Collection   2,500    2,500 2,500   

Marketing Training, Travel and Other Expen                     4,761    86    4,675   4,761    86 

Total Scheduling & Marketing Expenses   159,565  126,351    33,214   148,899    43,855    105,044   308,464    170,206 
 

INSURANCE & SAFETY 
Insurance & Safety Wages 74,903 61,285 

  

 
13,618 

      

 
74,903 

  

 
61,285 

Provision for PL & DL Setlements   85,494  4,708  80,786 85,494  4,708 

Workers Compensation Insurance   73,704  67,460  6,244 73,704  67,460 

General Liability and Property Damage Insu   265,837  262,112  3,725 265,837  262,112 

All Other Insurance   9,749  10,138  (389) 9,749  10,138 

Brokered Services   9,166  16,292  (7,126) 9,166  16,292 

BRT Expenses   50,000    50,000 50,000   

Safety Program - FTA     15,000  (15,000)   15,000 

Safety Training, Travel and Other Expenses                     4,467    374    4,093   4,467    374 

Total Insurance & Safety Expenses   74,903  61,285    13,618   498,417    376,084    122,333   573,320    437,369 
 

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE 
General and Administrative Salaries 421,986 314,553 

  

 
107,433 

      

 
421,986 

  

 
314,553 

Retirement Benefits 127,898 113,810  14,088      127,898  113,810 

Health, Life & Disability Insurance 1,175,650 1,095,015  80,635      1,175,650  1,095,015 

Other Employee Benefits   1,675  5,304  (3,629) 1,675  5,304 

Employee Recruitment Fees   9,750  8,481  1,269 9,750  8,481 

Security Services   4,061  139  3,922 4,061  139 

Board of Directors Expense   4,166    4,166 4,166   

Professional Fees   38,637  15,900  22,737 38,637  15,900 

Go Cards, Transfers, & CARE Tickets   54,667  28  54,639 54,667  28 

Communication & Information Technology   155,283  204,827  (49,544) 155,283  204,827 

Membership Dues & Subscriptions   13,625  9,200  4,425 13,625  9,200 

Travel, Training & Supplies   12,044  4,953  7,091 12,044  4,953 

General Office Building Utilities   9,004  6,500  2,504 9,004  6,500 

Procurement Bids & Advertising Expenses   500  442  58 500  442 

Other General Expenses                26,129    6,741    19,388   26,129    6,741 

Total General & Administrative   1,725,534  1,523,378    202,156   329,541    262,515    67,026   2,055,075    1,785,893 
 

PURCHASE OF SERVICE - SPECTRAN & VANPOOL 
SpecTran 

   

 
1,157,329 

  

 
666,091 

  

 
491,238 

 

 
1,157,329 

  

 
666,091 

Vanpool                86,370    37,775    48,595   86,370    37,775 

Total SpecTran & Vanpool                1,243,699    703,866    539,833   1,243,699    703,866 
 

OPERATING TAXES & LICENSES 
Payroll Taxes 

   

 
299,699 

  

 
224,628 

  

 
75,071 

 

 
299,699 

  

 
224,628 

Vehicle Registrations   500  99  401 500  99 

Operator Licenses                667    360    307   667    360 

Total Operating Taxes & Licenses                300,866    225,087    75,779   300,866    225,087 

 
GRAND TOTAL 

 

5,166,505 
 

4,609,492 
 

557,013 
 

3,735,156 
 

3,373,959 
 

361,197 
 

8,901,661 
 

7,983,451 
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GRTC Transit System 
BALANCE SHEET 10/22/20 

For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2020 06:23 PM 

Balance Sheet 
 

 Current 
  Month  

Prior 
  Month  

Prior 
  Year End  

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 
Cash 

 
 

$2,118,710 

 
 

$3,506,142 

 
 

$1,531,096 
Working Funds 123,349 123,349 119,749 
Capital Funds 3,558,150 3,551,141 6,041,640 
Accounts Receivable, net 11,552,570 8,617,075 9,650,118 
Motor Bus Parts Inventory 785,468 798,093 807,755 
Gasoline Inventory 1,181 3,626 1,317 
Diesel Fuels Inventory 39,139 23,757 30,346 
Lubricants Inventory 33,990 39,503 34,231 

Prepayments   2,825,209   1,005,849   1,137,001 

Total Current Assets 21,037,766 17,668,535 19,353,253 

Tangible Property: 
Property and Equipment 

 

154,841,487 

 

154,841,487 

 

154,720,484 

Accumulated Depreciation   (73,987,583)   (73,587,583)   (73,187,583) 

Net Property 80,853,904 81,253,904 81,532,901 

Other Assets: 
Restricted Funds 

 

8,492,752 

 

8,492,752 

 

8,492,752 
Intangible Asset - Software, net of amortiza 1,386,298 1,386,298 1,386,298 
Deferred Outflows GASB 68 8,573,235 8,573,235 8,573,235 

Deferred Outflows GASB 75   1,216,463   1,216,463   1,216,463 

Total Other Assets   19,668,748   19,668,748   19,668,748 

TOTAL ASSETS   121,560,418   118,591,187   120,554,902 

 
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL 
Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 

 
 

 
5,860,601 

 
 

 
3,985,180 

 
 

 
6,113,778 

Wages Payable 33,822 38,276 1,424,855 
Taxes Accrued   96,144 

Other Current Liabilities   1,765,058   797,767   515,773 

Total Current Liabilities 7,659,481 4,821,223 8,150,550 

Non-current Liabilities: 
N/P City, OPEB and GASB 68 

 

58,864,512 

 

58,864,512 

 

58,864,512 

Reserves: 
   

Injuries, Loss, and Damage   350,650   350,650   350,650 

Total Reserves   350,650   350,650   350,650 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 66,874,643 64,036,385 67,365,712 

Capital: 
Common Stock 

 

50,005 

 

50,005 

 

50,005 
Paid-In Capital 99,288,574 99,247,377 99,126,374 

Fund Balance - Accumulated Depreciation (82,604,669) (82,204,669) (81,804,669) 
Fund Balance - OPEB (1,901,708) (1,901,708) (1,901,708) 
Fund Balance - GASB 68 (36,089,951) (36,089,951) (36,089,951) 
Fund Balance - GASB 75 578,792 578,792 578,792 

Fund Balance   75,364,732   74,874,956   73,230,347 

Total Capital 54,685,775 54,554,802 53,189,190 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL   121,560,418   118,591,187   120,554,902 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

 
 

Meeting Date: October 27, 2020 
Item Title: August Cash Flow Statement with Projections 

 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

Attached is the Cash Flow Statement with Projections as of August 31, 2020.  Dawn 
Bailey, Controller, will review the cash needs for the upcoming months. 

 
 

HIGHLIGHTS: 
 

We had expected to return the $2.5M during September, however, due to less than 
anticipated receipts from local contributors, $1.5M was returned. 
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Greater Richmond Transit Company 

Cash Flow Projection 

October 27, 2020 
 

 
 Actual 

August 

Preliminary 

September 

Expected Projected Projected 

October November December 

 Beginning Balance $ 2,572,391 $ 121,366 $ 2,002,339    $ 1,357,385    $ 2,315,496 

 
Payroll 

 
$ 

 
1,956,057 

 
$ 1,981,720 

 
$ 2,972,580 1,981,720 1,981,720 

Insurance $ 282,121 $ 1,867,306 $ - - - 

Medical $ 761,340 $ 787,298 $ 732,762 769,467 769,467 

Parts/Supplies/Fuel $ 715,906 $ 639,994 $ 930,165 840,429 840,429 
First Transit/Care-On-Demand $ 453,645 $ 417,896 $ 427,119 448,797 448,797 
Vehicle Purchases $ - $ - $ - - - 

Marketing/Utilities $ 153,137 $ 113,931 $ 185,640 296,132 296,132 
Other $ 182,397 $ 327,328 $ 311,040 316,717 316,717 
 Reserve Payback $ - $ 1,500,000 $ 1,000,000 - - 

Actual/Expected Expenses $ 4,504,604    $ 7,635,474 $ 6,559,306 $ 4,653,262 $ 4,653,262 

Conservative Gross Excess/(Deficiency) $ (1,932,212) $ (7,514,109) $ (4,556,967) $ (3,295,877) $ (2,337,767) 

Federal $ 595,188    $ 6,069,472 $ 2,355,209 2,355,209 2,355,209 

State $ 832,740    $ 822,323 $ 750,000 750,000 750,000 

Richmond $ 65,773    $ - $ 2,075,544 1,981,421 - 
Henrico $ - $ 1,303,992 $ 562,724 353,867 353,867 

Chesterfield $ 102,636 $ 102,636 $ 102,636 102,636 102,636 

Petersburg $ 16,667 $ 16,667 $ 16,667 16,667 16,667 

VCU $ - $ 394,503 $ - - - 
Other $ 440,574 $ 806,855 $ 51,573 51,573 51,573 

 Reserve Transfer into Revenue $ - $ - $ - - - 

Actual/ Expected Revenues $ 2,053,578 $ 9,516,448 $ 5,914,352 $ 5,611,373    $ 3,629,952 

Conservative Excess/(Deficiency) $ 121,366 $ 2,002,339 $ 1,357,385 $ 2,315,496 $ 1,292,185 

Reserve Monthly Use for Cash Flow $ - $ (1,500,000) $ (1,000,000) $ - $ - 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Discussion Item 

 
 

Meeting Date:  October 27, 2020 
Item Title:   Recent and Upcoming Procurements 
 

 
              

BACKGROUND: 
 
Attached is a compilation of procurements that are on-going or have been identified to initiate in 
the coming months.   
 
There were no procurements that fell within the $50,000 to below $250,000 range that required 
the board chairman’s approval for the month of September.  
 
Below is a list of procurements for Board Approval: 
 

Date PO Vendor Purpose Amount Requested By Approval 

10/27/2020  First Transit Specialized Transportation Service $6,522,195 Tim Barham  

       

       

       

Total    $ 6,522,195   

 
 
CURRENT STATUS: 
 
Tonya Thompson, Director of Procurement, will review the procurements at the September 2020 
meeting.   
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TITLE DEPT BUDGET

ANTICIPATED              

AWARD DATE

PROJECT 

COMMENCEMENT 

DATE

Project            

End Date COMMENTS
Ongoing Operator Recruitment Ads Marketing $200,000 Nov/Dec 2020 Jan-21 TBD

Employee Parking Lot Paving Facility $54,800 TBD TBD TBD Developing IFB

BRT Landscaping and Lawn Service Facility $137,910 Five Years Sep-20 Nov-20 Oct-20 1-yr initial w/ 4 1-yr Renewals

A&E Contract Scope Preparation

Bus Cleaners Maintenance $750,000 Dec-20 Feb-21 TBD Working on RFP

Program Manager DRPT Baker Facility TBD TBD TBD Under Consideration

Fleet Buses - Gillig Maintenance Aug-20 TBD TBD

DRPT Contract, Quote Received, 

15-40ft. Buses in September 2021, 

15-Buses Early 2022, Additional 

Order in Summer/Fall 2022

ERP Consultant IT $200,000 Sep-20 Oct-20 TBD Negotiations/Reference Check

Heavy Duty Wrecker (Tow Truck) Maintenance $574,500 Aug-20 Sep-20

Upon 

Delivery Ordered/Waiting on Delivery

Shelters Installation/Removal Services Planning $350,515 Nov-20 Dec-20 Nov-23 Evaluation Committee to Meet

Regional Transit Plan Planning $200,000 Nov-20 Nov-20 Mar-21 Proposals due 10/29/20

Building Window Washing Services Facility $6,364 TBD TBD TBD Not Started

Paratransit Vehicles Maintenance $5,200,000.00 Nov-20 Nov-20 Aug-20 Staggered delivery of 35 Vehicles

CURRENT & ONGOING PROCUREMENTS

57



 
 

GRTC Transit System 
Board Action Item 

 
 

Meeting Date:  October 27, 2020 
Item Title: FY2020 RideFinders Annual Audit  
 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 
According to RideFinders Amended and Restated Bylaws, the “Corporation’s books and 
financial records should be audited after each fiscal year.  The auditors shall present the results 
of the audit to the Board of Directors.” 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS: 
 
Brown, Edwards & Company, L.L.P conducted RideFinders’ audit of financial statements which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material 
respects,  in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Leslie Roberts will present the Audit report.  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Directors accepts RideFinders FY20 Annual Report as presented. 
 
 
 
 
         
Eldridge F. Coles, Secretary Date 
GRTC Board of Directors 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
RideFinders 
Richmond, Virginia 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RideFinders (a nonprofit organization), which 
comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of 
activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted  in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of RideFinders as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.  
The grant activity on page 13 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of 
the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, such information is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated  
October 6, 2020, on our consideration of RideFinders’ internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering RideFinders' internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
Newport News, Virginia 
October 6, 2020 
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The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
3

RIDEFINDERS

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

ASSETS
Cash 200,335$                220,899$                
Accounts receivable 8,175                      31,902                    
Grants receivable (Note 4) 118,258                  101,801                  
Due from GRTC (Note 5) 145,837                  120,602                  
Prepaid expenses 13,562                    9,697                      
Property and equipment, net 2,029                      5,296                      

Total assets 488,196$                490,197$                

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable 36,981$                  73,346$                  
Accrued expenses 41,330                    34,144                    
Amount held for pass-through grant (Note 8) 66,000                    74,990                    
Deferred rent liability (Note 6) 33,460                    28,471                    

Total liabilities 177,771                  210,951                  

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS (Note 3) 310,425                  279,246                  

Total liabilities and net assets 488,196$                490,197$                
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The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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RIDEFINDERS

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE WITHOUT 
  DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Grants (Notes 4 and 7):
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation:

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 619,353$                589,097$                
Commonwealth of Virginia 14,435                    80,000                    
Mobility Program 33,718                    -                              

City of Richmond 8,390                      7,500                      
Chesterfield County 7,500                      7,500                      
Henrico County 7,500                      7,500                      

Total grants 690,896                  691,597                  

Transit tickets and other revenue (Note 7) 389,044                  528,250                  

Total public support and revenue without 
donor restrictions 1,079,940               1,219,847               

EXPENSES (Notes 9 and 10)
Program expenses 910,785                  1,106,843               
Supporting expenses 137,976                  134,653                  

Total expenses 1,048,761               1,241,496               

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 31,179                    (21,649)                   

Net assets, beginning of year 279,246                  300,895                  

Net net assets, end of year 310,425$                279,246$                
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The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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RIDEFINDERS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 31,179$                  (21,649)$                 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
 provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 3,267                      4,132            
In-kind contribution -                    (2,706)           
Changes in current assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 23,727          (11,725)         
Grants receivable (16,457)         61,924          
Due from GRTC (25,235)         428               
Prepaid expenses (3,865)           11,116          
Accounts payable (36,365)         (23,212)         
Accrued expenses 7,186            6,269            
Amount held for pass-through grant (8,990)           28,471          
Deferred rent liability 4,989            74,990          

Net (decrease) increase in cash (20,564)                   128,038                  

CASH
Beginning of year 220,899                  92,861                    

End of year 200,335$                220,899$                
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RIDEFINDERS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 

 
 

(Continued) 
6 

1. Organization 

RideFinders is non-stock, non-profit corporation established to foster community participation in the Greater 
Richmond, Virginia area in ridesharing activities, including carpools, vanpools, and traditional transit. 
RideFinders is the regional non-profit ridesharing and transportation demand management agency that works 
to move more commuters in fewer vehicles throughout the Central Virginia region to protect air quality and 
increase the efficiency of the region’s transportation network.  RideFinders is a blended component unit of 
Greater Richmond Transit Co. (GRTC) and is reported as such in GRTC consolidated financial statements.  

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of presentation 

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for nonprofit 
organizations, RideFinders is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to two classes of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor 
restrictions. The financial statements report amounts separately by class of net assets as follows: 

Net assets without donor restrictions  
Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use in general operations and not subject to 
donor restrictions. These amounts are currently available at the discretion of RideFinders’ Board of 
Directors for use in operations and those resources invested in property or equipment. 

Net assets with donor restrictions  
Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed 
restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other 
events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the 
donor stipulates that resources must be maintained in perpetuity. 

RideFinders had no net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2020 and 2019. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates and assumptions. 

Cash  

RideFinders cash consists of demand deposit accounts with banking institutions. 
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RIDEFINDERS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 

 
 

(Continued) 
7 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Accounts receivable 

Accounts receivable in the amount of $8,175 and $31,902 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, represent 
amounts due from the sale of transit tickets and related products. RideFinders grants credit to customers, 
substantially all of whom are retail businesses and local government agencies, located in the vicinity of the 
operating locations.  RideFinders provides an allowance for doubtful collections that is based upon a review 
of outstanding receivables, historical collection information, and existing economic conditions.  Delinquent 
receivables are written off based on individual credit evaluation and specific circumstances of the customer.  
No allowance for doubtful collections has been recorded at June 30, 2020 and 2019. 

Donated services 

No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for donated services since the criteria for 
recognition has not been met under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Property and equipment 

Property and equipment is stated at cost.  Major additions and betterments are capitalized.  The cost of 
maintenance and repairs is expensed in the period incurred.  Depreciation is determined on the straight-line 
method.  Estimated useful lives for purposes of depreciation are three to ten years. 

Functional expenses 

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis 
in the statements of activities.  Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among program and supporting 
services. 

Advertising costs 

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred and were $46,874 and $85,745 for 2020 and 2019, respectively, 
and are included in both supporting and program expenses on the statements of activities. 

Income taxes 

RideFinders is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code and the tax statutes of the Commonwealth of Virginia; accordingly, the accompanying 
financial statements do not reflect a provision or liability for federal and state income taxes. 
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RIDEFINDERS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 

 
 

(Continued) 
8 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Recent accounting pronouncements 

Ridefinders implemented Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update 
(ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and ASU 2018-18, Not-for-Profit 
Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and 
Contributions Made. Ridefinders has adjusted the presentation of its financial statements accordingly, 
applying the changes to the comparative period presented. The new standards had the following impact on 
Ridefinders’ financial statements: 

• The financial statements include new disclosure regarding revenue recognition policies (Note 7), 
and  

• The implementation of these new standards did not restate Ridefinders’ total net assets or change 
in net assets as previously reported. 

In adopting Topic 606 and Topic 958, Ridefinders made no changes to its policies of recognizing revenue 
related to grants (federal and other agencies) and transit ticket sales. Ridefinders considers the grant funding 
to be contributions.  

Subsequent events 

In preparing these financial statements, RideFinders has evaluated events and transactions for potential 
recognition or disclosure through October 6, 2020, the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued. 

3. Liquidity and Availability 

As part of its liquidity management, RideFinders has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available 
as its general expenses, liabilities, and other obligations come due. 

Financial assets available for general expenditure without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within 
one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following: 

  2020   2019  

 Cash, less amounts held for pass-through grant $ 134,335 $ 145,909 
 Accounts receivable  8,175  31,902 
 Grants receivable  118,258  101,801 
 Prepaid expenses  13,562  9,697 

    $ 274,330 $ 289,309 
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RIDEFINDERS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 

 
 

(Continued) 
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4. Grants 

Grants by the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation (VDRPT) provide for reimbursement 
of certain qualified expenditures incurred during the fiscal year.  The grants are renewable on an annual basis. 
Grant revenues are recognized in the period in which the related expenditures are incurred.  The VDRPT 
grants represent the pass-through of Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) grants from the 
Department of Transportation - Federal Highway Administration.  Future CMAQ funding may be reduced 
due to changes in the funding allocation process.  However, RideFinders is working with other local 
transportation organizations to help ensure funding is maintained at an adequate level. Total grant revenues 
were 64% and 57% of total revenues for 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

Grants receivable in the amount of $118,258 and $101,801 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, are due 
to be collected within one year. 

5. Related Party Transactions 

RideFinders has various transactions with GRTC.  The amounts in the accompanying financial statements 
related to GRTC are presented below: 

  2020   2019  

  Accounts payable $ 36,540 $ 56,733 
  Payroll and related expenses $ 477,989 $ 461,311 
  Other expenses (advertising, transit tickets) $ 208,383 $ 323,146 
  Due from GRTC $ 145,837 $ 120,602 

Effective January 1, 1998, all RideFinders’ employees became GRTC employees.  RideFinders and GRTC 
entered into an employee lease agreement whereby RideFinders leases its employees from GRTC. 

6. Leases 

On August 8, 2011, GRTC entered into a lease agreement on behalf of RideFinders for office facilities in The 
Ironfronts Building.  The lease was renewed on February 19, 2019, and extends through June 30, 2029. Total 
rent to be paid during the initial one hundred twenty five month lease period is $711,780, or $5,694 per month 
on a straight-line basis.  Leasehold improvements necessary to occupy the leased premises are to be paid by 
the lessor. 

Lease expense associated with this lease was $68,331 and $68,069 for June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, 
and are included in both program and supporting expenses on the statements of activities. 

RideFinders has recorded a deferred rent liability on the statements of net position of $33,460 and $28,471 at 
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, which represents the difference between the rent expense recorded on 
a straight-line basis and actual cash payments made to the lessor. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 
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6. Leases (Continued) 

Future minimum rent payments under this lease are as follows: 

 Year Ending 
  June 30,  

   2021 $ 65,056 
   2022  66,844 
   2023  68,670 
   2024  70,533 
   2025  72,471 
   Thereafter  304,864 

    $ 648,438 

7. Revenues 

Ridefinders derives most of its revenues from contributions and transit ticket sales. Contributions are comprised 
primarily of grants from federal governmental agencies and other agencies which are included within operating 
revenues on the statement of activities.  Grant funding is recognized as revenue at the time when reimbursable 
expenses are incurred.  Transit ticket sales and other revenues include primarily the sale of GRTC transit tickets, 
but also include other vanpooling and commercial transit vouchers as well as some retail sales. Transit ticket 
sales and vouchers are recognized as revenue at the time they are sold. 

8. Amount Held for Pass-Through Grant 

During 2019, RideFinders entered into a grant agreement with the Bon Secours - Richmond Health System 
(BSRHS) and GRTC whereby BSRHS provided a grant amount of $100,000 to Ridefinders to fund a bus stop 
improvement project being administered by GRTC.  RideFinders sole obligations under this grant are to: (i) 
receive and hold the funds; (ii) prepare the required financial reporting; and (iii) reimburse GRTC for actual 
expenditures made by GRTC for the project.  RideFinders had received the full $100,000 from BSRHS and 
had a balance of $66,000 and $74,990, at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, remaining to be disbursed to 
GRTC. 

9. Functional Expenses and Allocations 

RideFinders had administrative and general expenses of $137,976 and $134,653 during the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, which consists of a 22% allocation of all non-direct program expenses 
based on the amount of time personnel and thus their related equipment and other overhead costs devote to 
general administrative tasks versus the provision of services in accordance with RideFinders’ mission.  
RideFinders had no fundraising expenses during 2020 or 2019. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 
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10. Natural Expense Classification 

The natural classification of total expenses for the year ended June 30, 2020, is as follows: 

  Program   Supporting   Total  

  Transit tickets and other retail $ 351,166 $ 242 $ 351,408 
  Salaries and benefits  372,830  105,159  477,989 
  Advertising and promotion  46,874  -  46,874 
  Rent  56,554  15,952  72,506 
  Vanpool assistance  21,482  -  21,482 
  Professional services  16,554  4,669  21,223 
  Other  17,374  4,196  21,570 
  Insurance  10,248  2,891  13,139 
  Office supplies and expense  7,234  2,041  9,275 
  Professional development  2,402  677  3,079 
  Telephone  4,870  1,374  6,244 
  Depreciation  2,548  719  3,267 
  Employer based services  450  -  450 

    $ 910,785 $ 137,976 $ 1,048,761 

The natural classification of total expenses for the year ended June 30, 2019, is as follows: 

  Program   Supporting   Total  

  Transit tickets and other retail $ 511,641 $ 220 $ 511,861 
  Salaries and benefits  359,823  101,488  461,311 
  Advertising and promotion  85,745  -  85,745 
  Rent  53,094  14,975  68,069 
  Vanpool assistance  31,730  -  31,730 
  Professional services  14,629  4,127  18,756 
  Other  12,617  3,559  16,176 
  Insurance  10,379  2,927  13,306 
  Office supplies and expense  8,836  2,492  11,328 
  Professional development  7,422  2,093  9,515 
  Telephone  6,607  1,863  8,470 
  Depreciation  3,223  909  4,132 
  Employer based services  1,097  -  1,097 

    $ 1,106,843 $ 134,653 $ 1,241,496 
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11. Subsequent Accounting Pronouncements 

ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) 

The FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), in February 2016. This ASU requires the recognition 
of lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under previous 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), which have terms greater than 12 months. This ASU 
defines a lease as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use of identified property, 
plant, or equipment (an identified asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. This ASU retains a 
distinction between finance leases and operating leases. The result of retaining a distinction between finance 
leases and operating leases in the statements of activities and cash flows is largely unchanged from previous 
GAAP. ASU No. 2016-02 is effective for fiscal year 2022. 

12. Subsequent Event 

The COVID-19 coronavirus outbreak is disrupting supply chains and affecting production and sales across a 
range of industries.  The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on Ridefinders’ operational and financial 
performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact 
on customers, employees and vendors all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted.  At this point, the 
extent to which COVID-19 may impact Ridefinders’ financial condition or results of operations is uncertain. 
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See Independent Auditor's Report.
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RIDEFINDERS

SCHEDULES OF GRANT ACTIVITY
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 Expenditures

Federal State Total

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Grants 495,487$          123,866$          619,353$          
Commonwealth of Virginia Grants -                       14,435 14,435              
Mobility Program -                       33,718 33,718              

495,487$          172,019$          667,506$          

2019 Expenditures

Federal State Total

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Grants 471,278$          117,819$          589,097$          
Commonwealth of Virginia Grants -                       80,000              80,000              

471,278$          197,819$          669,097$          
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER  

MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED  
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
RideFinders 
Richmond, Virginia 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of 
RideFinders, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated October 6, 2020. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered RideFinders' internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of RideFinders' internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of RideFinders' internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a or a combination of 
deficiencies, material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that 
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether RideFinders' financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
Newport News, Virginia 
October 6, 2020 

94


	Agenda 10-27-2020
	MINUTES - September 15, 2020
	Shareholder Meeting Update - Board Discussion Item
	CVTA Update - Board Discussion Item 10-27-2020
	Operating Performance - Board Discussion Item 10-27-2020
	Safety Performance - Board Discussion Item 10-27-20
	September Service Change - Board Discussion Item
	Specialized Transportation Service - Board Action Item 
	August 2020 Financial Report - Board Discussion Item
	August 2020 Cash Flow - Board Discussion Item
	Procurements - Board Discussion Item
	RideFinders Audit



